ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE TRANSPCORTATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 14, 2017
1:32 p. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Louise Stutes, Co-Chair
Represent ati ve Adam Whol, Co-Chair
Representative Matt C aman
Representative Harriet Drunmond
Represent ati ve Chuck Kopp
Representative Coll een Sullivan-Leonard
Representative David Eastman (al ternate)

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Mark Neuman
Representative Gabrielle LeDoux (alternate)

COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 60

"An Act relating to the nmotor fuel tax; relating to the
di sposition of revenue from the notor fuel tax; relating to a
transportation maintenance fund; and providing for an effective
date."

- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 60

SHORT TITLE: MOTOR FUEL TAX; TRANSPORTATI ON MAI NT. FUND
SPONSOR(s): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNCR

01/ 18/ 17 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 18/ 17 (H) TRA, FIN

01/ 31/ 17 (H) TRA AT 1:30 PM BARNES 124
01/31/ 17 (H) Heard & Hel d

01/ 31/ 17 (H) M NUTE( TRA)

02/ 07/ 17 (H) TRA AT 1:30 PM BARNES 124

02/ 07/ 17 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 07/ 17 (H) M NUTE( TRA)

02/ 09/ 17 (H) TRA AT 1:30 PM BARNES 124

02/ 09/ 17 (H) Heard & Hel d

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -1- February 14, 2017



02/ 09/ 17 (H) M NUTE( TRA)
02/ 14/ 17 (H) TRA AT 1:30 PM BARNES 124

W TNESS REG STER

BRI AN FECHTER, Policy Anal yst

Ofice of the Director

O fice of Managenent & Budget

O fice of the Governor

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 60 on behal f of the governor.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

1:32:37 PM

COCHAIR ADAM WOOL called the House Transportation Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:32 p.m Represent ati ves
Drummond, Wbol, Stutes, Kopp, Canman, Sullivan-Leonard, and

East man were present at the call to order.

HB 60- MOTOR FUEL TAX; TRANSPORTATI ON MAI NT. FUND

1: 33: 26 PM

CO CHAI R WOOL announced that the only order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 60, "An Act relating to the notor fuel tax;
relating to the disposition of revenue from the notor fuel tax;
relating to a transportation nmai ntenance fund; and providing for
an effective date."

1: 33: 50 PM

BRI AN FECHTER, Policy Analyst, Ofice of the Director, Ofice of
Managenment & Budget, O fice of the Governor, presented HB 60 on
behal f of the governor. M. Fechter begin his PowerPoint
presentation titled, "Mtor Fuel Tax Overview HB 60." He
expl ained that HB 60 would increase Al aska's current notor fuel
tax by doubling it by fiscal year 2018 (FY 18) and then tripling
it by FY 19. He urged the conmittee to remenber that although
it may seem |ike a large increase, notor fuel tax for highways
had not been increased since 1970, for water craft since 1977,
and for aviation since 1996. M. Fechter declared that had the
state indexed to inflation, the eight cents per gallon highway
tax would actually be 49 cents today. He noted that the bol ded
figures on the bottom of slide two show current receipts totally
$40.3 nillion, once doubled that amunt would be $80 nmillion,

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 2- February 14, 2017



and then by FY 19 the state would have $120 million in receipts.
M. Fechter affirnmed that the receipts will be deposited into a
special designated fund to ensure that the taxpayers and the
public have sonme assurance that the noney being spent at the
punp does indeed get used for transportation infrastructure.

MR. FECHTER noved on to slide six, and discussed exanples of

what HB 60 woul d cost everyday Al askans. He shared an exanple
of a Wasilla to Anchorage commuter, who drives 25,000 mles
annually and gets about 25 mles to the gallon. He said that

the aforenentioned individual currently pays about $80 a year,
which after the tripling would annually anmount to $240. M.
Fechter noted that although it is a tax increase, the departnent
does not see it as overly burdensone. He next addressed jet
fuel by giving an exanple of an Alaska Airlines' flight from
Juneau, Al aska, to Seattle, Washington, lasting 2 hours and 15
m nutes and assuming a Boeing 737 burn rate of 750 gallons per
hour, and stated that the current cost of $54 per flight would
be $162 after the second increase. He pointed out that after
the second increase the cost per passenger would be only $1.37
so the increase passed on to the end user would not be overly
oner ous.

MR. FECHTER said that slide four discusses the conparison of
Al aska's fuel tax structure to that of other states. He stated
that Alaska's highway tax is the lowest in the nation and al so
that it has remai ned unchanged the | ongest. M. Fechter noted
that the marine tax has a dotted |line because in nost states the
highway rate is the marine rate. He said that Al aska is unique
with only a few other states that give a special preferential
rate to marine fuel. He stressed that the special rate is an
important policy consideration given the inpact the maritine
i ndustry has on Al aska.

1: 36: 24 PM

COCHAIR WOOL offered his understanding that Alaska's nmarine
fuel tax rate of five cents is lower than the highway rate of
eight cents and that in nost states the two are one and the
sane.

MR. FECHTER confirmed Co-Chair Wol's understanding. He said
that there are only a handful of states that offer special "set
asi des. " He noted that sone states only offer a rebate to
comercial fisheries, but Alaska is the only state that across
the board has watercraft fuel at a |ower rate than highway fuel.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 3- February 14, 2017



1:37:16 PM

CO CHAIR STUTES inquired whether the jet fuel tax ranking of
35th out of 50 states was reflective of before or after the
mul ti pl e increase.

M . FECHTER answered that 35th is the current ranking.

CO CHAI R STUTES asked whether M. Fechter had anything show ng
what the ranking would be after the increases.

MR. FECHTER answered that he did not have those nunbers at this
time but that he would be happy to report those findings to the
commttee at a later date. He directed attention to slide five
and explained that for 31 states, the aviation fuel tax is
actually included in the sales tax. M. Fechter illustrated
that if Al aska took that approach, and assum ng a three percent
sales tax rate, it would cost users nore than what is proposed
under HB 60 and would put the state at about 35th in the nation
for aviation related fuel taxes.

CO- CHAIR STUTES requested a chart of where Alaska would stand
after all increases.

1: 38: 39 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN offered his understanding that Alaska is
currently 35th in the nation for aviation fuel tax, and he asked
for confirmation that M. Fechter was saying that even after the
i ncreases Al aska would remain in the same ranking.

MR. FECHTER expl ained that the chart just shows the special jet
fuel and aviation gasoline tax and doesn't show a holistic view
of all the taxes that land on aviation gasoline and jet fuel
He clarified that [after the increase in aviation fuel tax]
Al aska woul d rank [32nd out of the 43 state wth fuel tax.]

1:39: 24 PM

REPRESENTATI VE EASTMAN queried how the price of gas in Al aska
conpares to that of other states.

MR. FECHTER stated that he did not have an exact nunber, but

Al aska gas prices were "on the high end" conpared to other
st at es.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -4- February 14, 2017



REPRESENTATI VE EASTMAN offered his assunption that Alaska's
already high gas prices were taken into consideration when
drafting HB 60.

MR. FECHTER confirned that assunption

REPRESENTATI VE EASTMAN requested that that information be
provided to the commttee.

1: 40: 01 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KOPP offered his understanding that 31 states
have a sales tax that already applies to fuel.

MR. FECHTER confirmed that is correct.

REPRESENTATI VE KOPP noted that the charts in discussion show the
anount of revenue that each of the states 1is currently
collecting and are contrasted with what HB 60 proposes. He
el aborated that basically the departnent is trying to convey
that the fuel increases are not unprecedented.

MR. FECHTER answered that is correct. He added that every
county and nunicipality down south has different sales tax
rates.

1:41: 24 PM

MR. FECHTER continued with his presentation and discussed the
functionality of the designated fund. He recapped that the
departnment will be putting the receipts of the fund into a new
Al aska Transportation Mintenance Fund to give users assurance
that the noney being spent at the punp will only be used on
transportation infrastructure. M. Fechter explained that one
of the differences between a designated and a dedicated fund is
that the latter is prohibited under the constitution. He

continued that although receipts cannot be earnarked to bind
future legislatures, by directing the funds to a specific
pur pose, designations can be added into statute to act as a
"gentlenmen's agreenent.” M. Fechter further noted that despite
each future legislature's choice to either honor or ignore the
designation in statute, of the over 50 designated funds | ast
year there were only 2 out of 50 funds that were used "off-
desi gnation.” He said that over 90 percent of the time the
desi gnations are honored.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 5- February 14, 2017



CO CHAIR WOOL requested that M. Fechter reveal what those two
of f-desi gnati on i nstances were.

MR. FECHTER shared that the vehicle rental tax fund, which has a
designation for tourism marketing and devel opnent, was used for
both parks maintenance and highway maintenance; the higher
education fund, which has a designation for education prograns,
was used to fund retirenment paynents.

CO CHAI R STUTES asked whether any marine fuel tax could be put
into a fund designated for anything marine rel ated, whether that
be ports and harbors or the Al aska Marine H ghway System ( AVHS)

MR. FECHTER answered yes. He said that when developing the
proposed fuel tax, the departnent found that there were already
designations witten into statute: the highway tax was
designated for highway operations and naintenance; the non-
public highway tax, which is the tax on snow nachines, heavy
equi pnent, et cetera, was to be used on trials and shelters; and
the water craft tax was to be wused on water and harbor
facilities. M. Fechter said the departnment did not naterially
change any of the three aforenentioned designations and thought
that it would be best to | eave changes, determ ning how broad or
how specific the designations should be, up to the |egislature.

1:44: 04 PM

CO CHAI R STUTES offered her understanding that the marine fue
tax was already a designated fund that allocated additional tax
nmonies to specified projects for water craft in sonme capacity or
anot her .

MR. FECHTER explained that there were already the designations
but there was no way to appropriate specifically from the
accounts because they resided in the general fund (GF). He
continued that in practice, the legislature would appropriate
nmoney from the G-, but since far nore nobney is spent than
generated in taxes on transportation assets, it was just assuned
that the noney cane from the three existing designated accounts
for the purposes |isted.

CO CHAI R STUTES asked about the level of difficulty to put in
statute a designation for notor fuel taxes to go directly into a
desi gnated account for highways and the marine fuel taxes into
an account for waterways or ports and harbor.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 6- February 14, 2017



MR. FECHTER replied that Co-Chair Stutes' suggestion would be a

very sinmple fix in the bill. He noted that the bill currently
moves the accounts, keeping the current designations, into the
new Transportation Maintenance Fund. M. Fechter offered his
belief that tweaks could be nade to the designations that would
allocate generated revenue, for instance, from fuel for
watercrafts to only be used on the AVHS and ports and harbors
facilities. He added that the tweaks could be broadened or

ti ghtened as seen fit.
1:46: 10 PM

CO- CHAIR WOOL requested confirmation that the three designations
previ ously di scussed were al ready existing accounts.

MR. FECHTER acknow edged that is correct.

COCHAIR WoOL, in regard to notor fuel taxes for off-road
equi pnent, offered his understanding that there is no real way
for the departnent to differentiate, at the place of purchase,
whet her that fuel was used for a snow rmachine or in a generator.

MR. FECHTER explained that in order for users to receive the
of f-road notor fuel tax discount of six cents, a report nust be
filed with the departnment showing the specific off-road exenpt
use. He added that a return form is the only way for the
departnment to track the exact usage for the exenpt fuel, such as
for a snow machine, a four wheeler, or a generator.

COCHAIR WOOL offered his wunderstanding that any remaining
anount that is not rebated would then be determ ned to be off-
road and woul d be designated to be used on trails and shelters.

MR. FECHTER <confirmed that 1is the current designation in
statute. He said it is ultimtely up to the legislature to
determ ne exactly what sort of designation should be placed on
the previously nentioned itens. He continued on to slide seven

and repeated what he previously said about the accounts always
being comngled in the G- wth no way to appropriate
specifically from them M. Fechter restated that in the past
noney was appropriated from the G- and then when expenditures
exceeded <collections it was just assuned to conme from the

respective accounts. He noted that if HB 60 passes and the
accounts get noved into the Transportation Mintenance Fund,
then they wll still be com ngled. He explained that the
comngling yields added flexibility for the departnent. M.

Fechter said that the com ngling puts pressure on the departnent

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -7- February 14, 2017



to be frugal with its budget, because noney not spent from the
appropriation fromthis fund will |apse back into the fund to be
available in case of an energency, a disaster, or a one-tine
deferred mai ntenance need. He brought attention to jet fuel and
aviation gas and said they are not |listed as part of the three
accounts that would nove into the new fund. He said that is
because jet fuel and aviation gas are already separate, due to
Federal Aviation Admnistration (FAA) regulations, and that
change was reclassified | ast session.

MR. FECHTER addressed the table on slide eight, which outlines
the proposed allocations of the funds. He stated that the
all ocations are not witten in stone and the department wll
certainly entertain alternate allocations from the |egislature
to reach an equitable allocation of funding. He read from the
table, as follows:

We are putting $9.2 mllion to airport operations and
mai nt enance. $62.5 for highway and road naintenance
allocated to the three regions based on the size of

their total budget. There is an appropriation to the
Al aska Bureau of H ghway Patrol in the Departnent of
Public Safety. There are two capitol grants for

transit, one provides transportation services for the
el derly and disabled and the other provides [a] state
mat ch that |everages federal dollars for comunities

to purchase and operate bus systens. And we have
t hree appropriations for mari ne transportation,
i ncl udi ng: the AWHS, a grant to the Inter-Island

Ferry Authority (IFA) that runs the Ketchikan route;
and the Muinicipal Harbor Facility Grant Fund, which is
a 50/50 matching program that funds harbor repairs.

The top scoring project on this list wll cost $5
mllion and be fully funded in the governor's budget,
and it's for Wangell, Shoenmaker Harbor.

1:50:21 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DRUVMOND questioned M. Fechter about the history
of the IFA and why the state is providing a grant for its
oper ati on.

MR. FECHTER answered that the IFA can run the Ketchikan to
Hollis route |ess expensively than the AMHS. He said that the
state gives the IFA a small grant annually to subsidize its
operations; the local conmunities wanted nore frequent service
than the AVHS was willing to give. He shared his belief that

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 8- February 14, 2017



over the years the grant anmount had tapered down from being
closer to $1 mllion annually a few years ago.

REPRESENTATI VE DRUMMOND offered her understanding that the [|FA
used to operate two vessels, one fromthe north end of Prince of
Wales (PON to Wangell and Petersburg and one from the south
end of the island to Ketchikan; however, only one vessel is
currently in operation and mmintains the southern route. She
shared her belief that the northern run couldn't keep passenger
vol unes at sustainabl e |evels.

1: 52: 00 PM

CO CHAI R STUTES asked M. Fechter to clarify whether the state
will no longer be taking 50 percent of the marine fuel tax and
applying it toward hi ghway and road mai ntence.

MR. FECHTER addressed that slide nine shows that the proposed
allocation takes 6 percent of total collections and diverts it
to marine transportation, and marine fuel tax conprises 12
percent of total collection. He added that it is probably a
fair criticismthat the marine community may be getting a little
short changed on this allocation, but this is just the first
pr oposal , and he is certain that in working wth the
| egi sl ature, the nost equitable distribution of funding can be
f ound.

CO CHAIR STUTES requested confirmation that the departnent is
still taking 50 percent [of marine fuel tax] and applying it to
road and hi ghway.

MR. FECHTER responded that is correct.
1:53:29 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KOPP noted that in reference to a previous slide,
M. Fechter had said sonething that he thinks is very inportant
for the conmittee to understand. He asked M. Fechter to
clarify that designating this fund allows that unspent noney to
be | apsed back into the fund.

MR. FECHTER answered that is correct.
REPRESENTATI VE KOPP remarked that during a previous commttee
nmeeting he had asked about how the departnent planned and paid

for disasters, such as a road wash out, when those types of
i nci dences occur al nost every year. He said he had al so asked

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 9- February 14, 2017



if the newy designated fund would help the departnment to pay

for incidences wthout wusing G- nobney or reducing the
departnent's entire operational budget. He noted that he
previously got an indefinite answer but is now asking M.
Fechter whether the new fund will give DOT&PF a better avenue to

pay for those incidences.

MR. FECHTER confirmed that is correct. He said there will be
funding left in the nmotor fuel tax account, provided the
departnment | apses funding back to the fund, which can then be
avai l abl e for disasters and one-tine energency situations.

REPRESENTATI VE KOPP shared his opinion that that is a huge
benefit to the departnent it previously didn't have.

1:55:12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SULLI VAN- LEONARD of fered her understanding that
transit and bus users would not pay into this particular tax,
but that 2 percent would still be appropriated for transit and
bus use.

VR. FECHTER explained that there is an exenption for
muni ci palities and localities, which typically run bus systens.
He indicated that transportation [taxes] also fund non-profits,
which are fuel tax exenpt and the Bureau of H ghway Patrol - a
state entity. He stated that this allocation of funding just
represents "a first stab" before legislative input of where the
adm nistration would put the funding from this tax and
absolutely open to working together to find a nore equitable
al I ocation of funding.

REPRESENTATI VE SULLI VAN- LEONARD stated her belief that the big
buses create wear and tear on the road systens, and she opined
that is an inportant topic for further discussion.

1:56: 43 PM

REPRESENTATI VE EASTMAN shared that he sees a giant hole in M.
Fechter's presentation, and that is: Wiat is the inpact going to
be on Al askans once this is inplemented? He offered his belief
that the proposed tax woul d put Al aska above Washington in terns
of the cost of gas to users at the punp. He noted that
Washi ngton already has a gas tax that is over 37.6 cents per
gal | on. Representati ve Eastman explained that if Alaska's gas
tax is going to be increased to an anount conparable to that of
California and Hawaii, then he would like to see the departnent

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -10- February 14, 2017



both owm wup to that nove and explain how it wll effect
Al askans. He added that w thout that information, he does not
believe it is possible to adequately assess that this tax wll
do what the departnent is intending.

MR. FECHTER said the departnent could provide the requested
i nformati on.

CO- CHAIR WOOL shared his opinion that the conversation about gas
prices in Al aska verses that of other states is probably beyond
the scope of this commttee and hearing. He added that how
Al aska sets its gas prices or how the private market sets gas
prices is an inportant conversation for another tinmne.

MR. FECHTER returned to his presentation, to the final slide
and stated that the nunber one priority is for the increased tax
to reduce the deficit, no matter how the funds are allocated.
He reviewed that there are four separate accounts, and it is up
to the legislature to determ ne how the designation should be
written and what should be funded fromthe proceeds of the tax.

1:59:15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SULLI VAN- LEONARD asked whether Al aska currently
has a designated fund nmechani sm

MR. FECHTER answered that there was a designation witten into
law, but it could never be inplenented, because the designation
lived as a subaccount of the G- He added that although the
| egi slature can appropriate funds from the G- it is not easy
because of the many subaccounts.

REPRESENTATI VE SULLI VAN- LEONARD i nqui red whether conpanies |ike
Tesoro Corporation are paying sone sort of a fuel tax and, if
so, where that noney goes.

MR. FECHTER responded that the close to one-cent tax is paid at
the distributer level and is a separate tax. He expl ai ned that
the proposed taxes would be paid at the actual point of
del i very.

2:00: 35 PM
CO- CHAIR STUTES inquired whether she was correct in thinking
that the departnment doesn't have a preference as to how the

funds are designated, because wherever the funds go, they wll
just replace UGF funds.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -11- February 14, 2017



MR. FECHTER answered that's correct. He stated that as long as
the governor's priorities are funded in the final budget, the
department does not really care how the funds get all ocated.

2:01: 17 PM

COCHAIR WoOL, in followup to Representative Stutes' question
asked whether any of the total revenues, for any of the funds,
are in excess of what is needed for each of the conponents and
woul d roll into surplus.

MR. FECHTER expl ai ned that the departnment spends far nore in UG-
t han woul d be generated, even after the tax is tripled.

COCHAIR WoOL, in followup to Representative Kopp's question
about excess noney for a rainy day, offered his understanding
that in none of the revenues, if dispersed to the separate
funds, does the departnment foresee any left over. He added that
in order to see any surplus, the departnment would have to bring
in UG noney just to get it up to its operating |evel. He
i nqui red whet her aval anche or catastrophe noney would cone from
somewher e el se.

2:02: 55 PM

MR. FECHTER explained that the argument he was trying to
previously make is that if the departnent is frugal wth its
budget and |apses noney back to the fund, then it would be
avai l able for future use. He said that currently if the
entirety of the budget is not spent, then it |apses back to the
GF and is much nore challenging to appropriate for a one-tine
use. He noted that if it l|lapses to a designated fund, then it
is much nore pal atable to appropriate noney fromthat source.

CO CHAIR WOOL asked whether |left over noney conbined with UG
noney could, at the end of the year, be |apsed back into one of
t he desi gnated funds.

MR. FECHTER answered yes.

2:03:40 PM

REPRESENTATI VE EASTMAN requested information on how nuch the
departnment | apses back annually.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -12- February 14, 2017



MR. FECHTER replied that that information is extrenely variable
and offered his educated guess that statew de, all departnents,
woul d be roughly $50 million in UG for FY 16.

REPRESENTATI VE EASTMAN requested that M. Fechter provide that
information fromthe past five years to the commttee.

COCHAIR WOOL announced that the conmttee wll request a
commttee substitute be drafted for HB 60.

2:05:21 PM

CO CHAI R WOOL announced that HB 60 woul d be held over.

ADJ QURNIVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Transportation Standing Committee neeting was adjourned at 2:05
p. m

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -13- February 14, 2017



